
Agenda Report 

July 11 ' 20 11 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

THROUGH: Finance Committee 

FROM: Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: AGREEMENT WITH OFFICEMAX TO PROVIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with OfficeMax in an 
amount not to exceed $300,000; and to be the primary provider of office supplies 
for the City for a period of one year with two, one-year optional renewal periods. 
This contract is exempt from competitive bidding pursuant to City Charter section 
1 002 [H], contracts with other government entities or their contractors; and 

2. Grant the proposed contract an exemption from the competitive selection 
process of the Competitive Bidding and Purchasing Ordinance, Pasadena 
Municipal Code Chapter 4.08, pursuant to Section 4.08.049(8) contracts for 
which the City's best interests are served. 

BACKGROUND: 

As a part of an ongoing review of City operations, and in an effort to identify potential 
monetary savings and increase operational efficiencies, the City's office supply 
procurement process was examined. Currently, departments use office supply venues 
represented on the Virtual Mall on the City's Intranet. Prices listed by the various office 
supply companies are based on contract pricing derived from cooperative procurement 
contracts and competitively awarded contracts. Staff has the option to purchase office 
supplies from one or more of the suppliers. Although this may seem to be a cost 
effective process for office supply procurement, productivity is lost when employees 
spend time searching the web or calling to various suppliers to find the best price. The 
current process is costly ~nd labor intensive. 
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A number of meetings were conducted with the major office supply vendors currently 
doing business with Pasadena to identify ways to improve office supply procurement. 
After the initial meetings, a Request for Information (RFI) was circulated to help 
determine the most effective approach for the office supply procurement program. Four 
suppliers responded to the RFI; they were OfficeMax, Office Depot, Staples, and 
Source One/Independent Stationers (a joint response). These suppliers were asked to 
present their office supplies program to a City panel comprised of an Assistant City 
Manager, the Director of Finance, the Assistant General Manager-PWP, and the 
Purchasing Administrator. Each supplier had a program for the City to take advantage 
of a multi-jurisdictional office supply purchasing pool to leverage Pasadena's purchasing 
power and gain better price points for supplies. 

After the panel heard the presentations, savings could be attained by entering into an 
agreement with any one of the suppliers. OfficeMax, however, stood out as having the 
most robust management/monitoring system for ensuring, not only the best price, but 
the best tools to readily ascertain procurement efficiency and waste minimization. 
Months prior to release of the RFI, Office Max, at no cost conducted a review of the 
City's office supply purchases and determined that, even assuming the same inefficient 
procurement patterns, approximately $77,000 savings would have been saved using 
their program. Although Office Depot and Staples were provided the same information 
at the same time that OfficeMax used to perform their review, neither supplier provided 
an analysis or recommendations for savings. 

The Office Max pool program is called "America Saves." Per the Pasadena Municipal 
Code (PMC), award of contracts can be made via a "piggy-back" option, if it is 
determined that the vendor was recently awarded a contract by another municipal 
jurisdiction for similar items or services after a formal Request For Proposal (RFP) 
process. OfficeMax was awarded a contract by the County of San Diego on June 15, 
2011, for the same program being recommended to the City. The lead agency for the 
America Saves program is Oakland County in Michigan. 

In addition to the America Saves program, OfficeMax also proposed a program called 
"Managed Print." This program provides an improved ordering process for toner and 
maintenance of the various printers throughout the City. Through software installed on 
the printer, the Managed Print program continually monitors toner and maintenance 
needs. Toner is automatically ordered for overnight delivery and service calls are 
automatically dispatched when needed. This process for toner purchases will eliminate 
the need to stockpile multiple toners cartridges. OfficeMax, at no charge also conducted 
a review of the City's printers and determined that utilization of the Managed Print 
program could save approximately $34,000 per year. 

Under the recommended office supply procurement program, a core list of 250 items 
will be discounted 10 to 90 percent from retail prices? This core list was developed 
based on Pasadena's office supply procurement history for the past three years and the 
most cost effective items from the America Saves core list. The core list will be 
evaluated every six months to determine if items should be added or deleted based on 
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the City's usage and to ensure the best price for the most frequently purchases office 
supplies. Office Max also has a "Tote" program that supports Pasadena's green 
initiative through the recycling of containers used to deliver office supplies. 

Staff reviewed OfficeMax's current agreement with their lead agency, Oakland County, 
Michigan, and is satisfied that it meets the requirements of the "piggy-back" option per 
the Pasadena Municipal Code. 

Staff recommends that the City Manager be authorized to approve an agreement with 
OfficeMax to be the City's primary office supplier, through their American Saves and 
Managed Print programs, for an initial term of one year with two, one-year options. Per 
staff's review, OfficeMax provides the bestcombination of price, management tools, and 
partnership to help the City achieve a successful office supply procurement program. 

It is anticipated that approval of this action could result in approximately $111 ,000 in 
savings in the first year. Additionally, the America Saves program offers a rebate 
program that will generate a 1 to 2 percent rebate to the City depending on the amount 
of purchases made through the program. Assuming purchases of $300,000, a 2 
percent rebate (approximately $6,000) would be realized resulting in a net cost to the 
City $294,000 and an overall savings of $117,000 in the first year. 

COUNCIL POLICY CONSIDERATION: 

This action supports the City Council's strategic goal to maintain fiscal responsibility and 
stability. 



Agreement with OfficeMax to Provide the City's Office Supplies 
July 11, 2011 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost of this action is approximately $300,000. Funding for this action will be 
addressed by utilization of existing budgeted appropriations in various materials and 
supplies accounts ending in 81 01 within City departments. It is anticipated that 
$300,000 of the cost will be spent during the current fiscal year. No indirect and support 
costs such as maintenance and IT support are anticipated. 

A~---
MICHAEL J. BECK 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment A- Request For Information (RFI) 

Respectfully submitted, 

CL:Jutz2~ 
ANDREW GREEN 
Director of Finance 
Department of Finance 












